
    

  

                                                         BOROUGH OF RARITAN 

   BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING 

      MARCH 14, 2018~ 7:18PM 

 

The Meeting of the Borough of Raritan Board of Health was held on March 14, 2018 in           

the Municipal Building, 22 First Street, Raritan, New Jersey 08869 at 7:18 pm. 

   

STATEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
This meeting is called pursuant to the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Law. Notices 

of this meeting were sent to The Courier News and the Star Ledger on December 29, 2017. 

In addition, copies of notices were posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 

on the Raritan Borough website and filed in the Office of the Borough Clerk. Notices on the 

bulletin board have remained continuously posted.  Proper notice having been given, the 

secretary is directed to include this statement in the minutes of this meeting. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Anna Bongiovi, Marie Ciufo, Paula Machala, Katherine Mastice 

 

Absent:  Diane Lella, Preni Nair  

 

Also Present:  Paul Masaba, MD, SCHD Director, Michael McCarty, Registered 

Environmental Health Specialist, Nicolas Carra, Liaison, Constance M. 

Del Rocco, Secretary 

 

FLAG SALUTE 

Board President Machala led the flag salute 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

At this point the Board of Health welcomes comments from any member of the public. To 

help facilitate an orderly meeting and to permit the opportunity for anyone who wishes to be 

heard, speakers are asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes. If reading from a prepared 

statement, please provide a written copy after making your comments.  Please sign in by 

printing your name and address. 

 

James Foohey, Rhine Blvd, Raritan, New Jersey 08869-commented the Board of Health cut 

$17,000 in total from its budget. The first budget you cut $9,000 and then that budget was 

rejected by Mayor and Council. My advice to the Board of Health is to resubmit your 

budget for next year. If I were on this board I would tell Mayor and Council to jump in the 

river. The Board of Health has been treated very badly and this issue has been mismanaged 

from the very beginning. And another thing if you don’t want an Alternated Deputy 

Registrar you shouldn’t have one. I guess you will adopt this budget, but you did a great job 

and I thought everyone was good with it. 

 



 

 

 2 of 8  

Board President Machala commented this has been an ongoing issue with the extended 

hours to twenty a week. She added there is a need for a Deputy Registrar we know this. 

 

James Foohey noted it seems like they are controlling the Board of Health and they found a 

way around this budget. But they can’t tell you how to spend the money only how much you 

will receive. This is all nickels and dimes in a budget of twelve million dollars. 

 

Board President Machala noted they are the ones that hold the purse strings. 

 

Board Member Mastice commented first I would like to thank you Mr. Foohey. This is 

amazing after all the publication of what we are doing and what we are not doing. We cut a 

bare bones budget, we know what we spend and we have never over extended the budget. 

And they still cut it and we still are in the dark as to why. I wish someone from the Council 

would come and tell us why. We are very frustrated and this is all very embarrassing. 

 

Board Member Bongiovi commented I don’t understand why we have an assistant to an 

assistant. I think Connie is more that qualified to take care of everything that is needed to be 

done. This whole thing affects me more than anyone on this Board. We cut the budget so we 

could operate efficiently. Maybe we shouldn’t be here maybe you (Councilman Carra) 

should tell the Council, let them do it. I am going on record as saying I am very 

disappointed. 

 

Councilman Carra noted if you don’t want an Alternated Deputy Registrar you don’t have to 

have one. 

 

Board Member Ciufo asked what was the rationale behind cutting the budget the additional 

$8,000.? 

 

Councilman Carra gave the following Liaison Report 

 

Councilman Carra read the following: 

      On a special meeting of the Raritan Borough Governing body, the Mayor and council 

discussed the outstanding debate regarding the Board of Health Budget. According to the 

approved minutes of that meeting, “Mayor McMullin asked members of Council if they wished 

to go over the preliminary budget line by line. No member of Council expressed an interest in 

doing so. The Mayor then asked whether anyone would like to discuss the outstanding issue of 

the Board of Health. The Mayor said he, two members of Council (Council President Tozzi and 

Councilman Carra), CPO Kneafsey, Administrator Jaxel, and Auditor Korecky met recently to 

discuss the budget. In regard to the Board of Health, the group discussed three numbers, $7,000, 

$12,000 and $20,000, the Mayor said, adding he, and the two members of Council agreed the 

$12,000 was the appropriate number-plus two percent. 

     Councilman Bray asked for confirmation that Council is allowed to dedicate a certain amount 

of money for the Board of Health, but cannot dictate how the money is spent. Mayor McMullin 

said the contract with the County is $69,000 annually and requires 120 days to terminate before 

the end of the year –so that number is set. The Mayor then said that yes, the Board of Health can 

use the remaining money as they see fit.  



 

 

 3 of 8  

     Administrator Jaxel said the numbers used in regard to salaries were the existing salaries, plus 

two percent. Councilman Bray said this would restrict the Board of health from expanding hours 

to five days a week. Mayor McMullin asked Council if they have heard from anyone in the town 

that Vital Statistics is a problem. Councilman Giraldi said the owner of the funeral home has 

complained about the hours of operation. 

     The Mayor then asked Council what they would like to do. Councilman Giraldi questioned 

whether member s of the Board of Health would resign if they do not receive what they 

requested. Councilman Bray said he believes some member may leave, adding the Board made 

an effort to cut their budget. 

     Mayor McMullin again asked Council how they would like to procced. Council President 

Tozzi said he does not agree with spending $21,000 per year to bring in $10,000. Councilman 

Orozco asked if Council should then keep it the way it is. 

     Councilman Bray said there is a lot of strain on the Borough Clerk’s Office with the way 

things are currently operating (as another reason to increase the hours of the Registrar). Council 

President Tozzi asked what other members of Council think. Councilman Orozco said he 

believes there are bigger fish to fry and the Governing Body has been discussing this matter even 

before January. 

 Mayor McMullin asked Council if they would like to move on. Some members informally said 

yes, none said no. ”No recorded vote or motion was made or recorded.  

 

 

 

 

Board Member Ciufo commented in the past years the budget has been a lot more. Why take the 

money away if no one has ever complained about the budget in past years. We cut the budget but 

still were unable to give the $8,000 to the Registrar for the additional days and hours. This is 

because they don’t want her to have the money. 

 

Board Member Mastice replied, clearly this is because of giving the money to the Registrar. 

 

Councilman Carra replied their view is not looking at the whole budget but looking at what it 

looks like to give an almost eight percent raise to an office that doesn’t bring in the extra 

revenue. 

 

Board Member Mastice replied the salary is so low to begin with, I was a secretary for the 

County and made more money five or six years ago then the Registrar makes now, and the work 

is probably the same if not more. This is ridiculous and we are giving up our time. 

 

Board Member Ciufo asked, I want to be prepared when it comes time to renew the contract for 

the County Health Department. So what happens if we agree we want to keep the SCHD next 

year? 

 

Councilman Carra replied the funds can be denied, but the Board of Health would be the ones to 

sign the contract. 



 

 

 4 of 8  

Board Member Ciufo asked, if we could have been presented something that made sense that 

would be a good thing, but this doesn’t make sense. We were never even informed about this in 

the first place. 

 

Board Member Bongiovi commented I love my Town but this is a lot of injustice going on here. 

When the Registrar is available I do my death certificates but I can get them anywhere, this pays 

for her salary. I can take care of myself, you are not hurting me your punishing yourself. But that 

$8,000-$10,000 it  just so happens the death rate was up and the certificates were $20.00 instead 

of the now $2.00. There was a $15,000-$18,000 of revenue but the State has changed its prices 

now, $25.00 for the first certificate and $2.00 for each additional one.  

 

James Foohey commented the Registrar’s office is not meant to be a revenue producing office it 

is to provide a service to the residents of Raritan. I’m sure the Registrars in other municipalities 

are not making enough revenue to support their salaries of $45,000- $63,000 a year. 

  

Board President Machala commented she was disappointed with the whole situation.  

 

Board President Machala closed the Public portion at 7:39 pm all were favor. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

  1.  February 2018 Regular  

  2.  February 2018 Executive 

 

Board Member Mastice motioned to approve the February 2018 Regular and Executive minutes, 

second by Board Member Bongiovi. Motion carried by the following roll call vote. 

 
Motion Second Name Yeas Nays Abstain Absent 

           X Bongiovi      X         

             Ciufo      X         

            Lella              X 

  Machala      X         

     X  Mastice      X         

       Nair         X 

 

PRESIDENTS REPORT 

None given 

 

REGISTRAR REPORT 
Registrar’s Report for January and February 2018 

 

Total Fees Collected 

 

January $798.03 

 

February $678.05 

 

 



 

 

 5 of 8  

Total Fees to Date  

   

  $1,476.08 

 

Board Member Ciufo motioned to approve the January and February 2018 Registrar Report, 

second by Board Member Mastice. Motion carried by the following roll call vote. 

 
Motion Second Name Yeas Nays Abstain Absent 

            Bongiovi      X         

     X        Ciufo      X         

            Lella              X 

  Machala      X         

           X Mastice      X         

       Nair         X 

 

HEALTH OFFICER’S REPORT 

Paul Masaba, MD gave the following report: 

Last month we discussed the increase lead levels in children and a program we wanted to start. 

This program has been fully constituted. The SCHD has hired a lead inspector and we have 

started to educate health care providers and the general public. The SCHD is applying for a 

national grant which will assist us in these programs. Last weekend the OEM opened a shelter 

due to the number of outages in the northern part of the county. This was the first time the SCHD 

championed the opening of a shelter, it was very much a learning experience.  

 

Board Member Ciufo asked how people learned about the shelter. 

 

Dr. Masaba replied the press release went out late on Friday March 3
rd

 , presumably there were a 

number of people without power so that was a drawback. We will think of better ways to 

publicize this in the future.  

 

Board Member Ciufo noted the PSE&G is usually the first to be called when you have a power 

outage and also there is Nexel. 

 

HEALTH INSPECTOR’S REPORT 

Michael McCarty gave the following report for February 2018. 

 

Complaints-February 2018 

1.   40 North Gaston Avenue-Complaint regarding skunk population in area-advised and referred 

to Animal Control Solutions for follow-up.  

 

 2.   615 North Thompson Street-Ongoing issue with “mini-farm” on North Thompson Street. 

Conducted on site visit and spoke with owner on telephone. 

 

Health Inspector McCarty noted there is no approval for the Board of Health in this issue, but I 

did tell the owner that he would have to do something about the odor. The owner was going to 

try a few things on this own for the odor. I let him know we would have to readdress this issue if 

the odor continued. 



 

 

 6 of 8  

 

Health Inspector McCarty noted Sweet New Creations is a new bakery in the Borough. 

 

Board Member Mastice asked if they did all their baking on premises, and if they were able to do 

this.  

 

Health Inspector McCarty noted they have been inspected and fully approved.  

 

Board Member Ciufo motioned to approve the Health Inspectors report for February, seconded 

by Board Member Bongiovi. Motion carried by the following roll call vote. 

 

 
Motion Second Name Yeas Nays Abstain Absent 

           X Bongiovi      X         

     X       Ciufo      X         

            Lella              X 

  Machala      X         

       Mastice      X         

       Nair              X 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION 2018-03-05 
 

ADOPTION OF THE 2018 ANNUAL BOARD OF HEALTH BUDGET 
 

BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Health of the Borough of Raritan, County of Somerset, State of 

New Jersey that the following 2018 Board of Health Budget be adopted by said Board.  

 

FUTHERMORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the 2018 Board of Health Budget is deemed 

necessary and reasonable by said Board in fulfilling its mandated responsibility in providing 

comprehensive public health services as required by law. 

 

    

   Adoption of the 2018 Board of Health Budget  

    

 

Salaries 

 

Secretary       $   1,250.00  

           

Vital Statistics  

 

Registrar       $ 12,646.00  

 

Deputy Registrar                              $      689.00 

     

 Health Services 
 

Somerset County Health Service Contract   $ 69,294.00 



 

 

 7 of 8  

 

 Environmental 

  

Environmental Contingency Funds    $   1,000.00 

 

Rabies Clinic 

 

Clinic Dog/Cat        $   1,000.00 

 

 

Miscellaneous       $     500.00    

  

 

TOTAL       $ 86,379.00 

 

 

Board Member Bongiovi motioned to approve Resolution 2018-03-05, seconded by Board 

Member Mastice. Motion carried by the following roll call vote.       

                                                

 
MOTION SECOND NAME YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 

X  Bongiovi    X    

  Ciufo    X    

         Lella       X 

         Machala    X    

 X Mastice    X    

  Nair    X 

 

 

Board Member Ciufo asked if the Board of Health would be changed for flu vaccine if they decided to 

have a clinic for the seniors. 

 

Dr. Masaba noted the price of the Flu vaccine was included in the present contract. 

    

NEW BUSINESS 

Fee Schedule for Health Department 

The Board of Health decided they were not interested in changing any fees at this time. All 

agreed. 

 

Flu Shots for Seniors 

Board Member Ciufo (RN) inquired if she could administer flu shots to the seniors at their 

October meeting. She added it would be beneficial and convenient for the seniors if they could 

come to their meeting and also get their flu shot. She asked Dr. Masaba if he would have the 

information on the new vaccine that would be in use before October. 

 

President Machala replied this is something that the BOH can do. 

 

Dr. Masaba noted he would get the information about the new vaccine to Board Member Ciufo 

as soon as possible. 



 

 

 8 of 8  

 

Board Member Ciufo noted 8 blood pressures were done at the February 14
th

  senior meeting. 

  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Board Member Mastice motioned to adjourn, seconded by Board Member Ciufo. Motion carried 

at 8:33pm. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Constance M. Del Rocco, Secretary 

Raritan Borough Board of Health 

 

 

 

Approved: April 11, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 


